ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 17, 2005
3:04 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Tom Ander son
Representative Vic Kohring
Representative Lesil MQiire
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssnha
Representative Berta Gardner

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 193

"An Act relating to the licensing, regulation, enforcenent, and
appeal rights of anbulatory surgical centers, assisted |iving
homes, child care facilities, child placenent agencies, foster
honmes, free-standing birth centers, honme health agencies,
hospi ces or agencies providing hospice services, hospitals,
internediate care facilities for the nentally retarded,
maternity homes, nursing facilities, residential <child care
facilities, residential psychiatric treatnment centers, and rural
health clinics; relating to crimnal history requirenments, and a
registry, regarding certain licenses, certifications, approvals,
and authorizations by the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services; making conform ng anmendnents; and providing for an
effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 185
"An Act relating to imrunization of postsecondary students for
meningitis; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED HB 185 OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 156
"An Act relating to the nmenbership of the Al aska Conm ssion on
Agi ng; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 156( HES) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 151

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- March 17, 2005



“An  Act

rel ating
post operative care;

provider responsibility for

and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 151(HES) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 13

"An Act

construction;

relating to reinbursenment of nunicipa
and providing for an effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 193

SHORT TI TLE: LI CENSI NG MEDI CAL OR CARE FACI LI TI ES

SPONSOR( S)

03/ 02/ 05
03/ 02/ 05
03/ 15/ 05
03/ 15/ 05
03/ 17/ 05

BILL: HB 185

I32z2

RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
HES, JUD, FIN

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Schedul ed But Not Heard

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TI TLE: POSTSECONDARY STUDENT | MMUNI ZATI ON

SPONSOR( S) :

02/ 28/ 05
02/ 28/ 05
03/ 17/ 05

BILL: HB 156

(
(
(

|_|)
|_|)
|_|)

REPRESENTATI VE(S) CHENAULT

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
HES, FIN
HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TI TLE: COWM SSI ON ON AG NG

SPONSOR( S) :

02/ 18/ 05
02/ 18/ 05
03/ 17/ 05

BILL: HB 151

(
(
(

H)
H)
H)

REPRESENTATI VE(S) HOLM

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
HES, FIN
HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TI TLE: RESPONSI Bl LI TY FOR CARE AFTER EYE SURGERY

SPONSOR( S) :

02/ 14/ 05
02/ 14/ 05
03/ 01/ 05
03/ 01/ 05

HOUSE HES COW TTEE

(
(
(
(

NS E N e

LABOR & COMVERCE BY REQUEST

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
HES, L&C

HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Schedul ed But Not Heard

-2- Mar ch

ocul ar

bonds for school

17, 2005



03/ 08/ 05 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
03/ 08/ 05 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 08/ 05 (H) M NUTE( HES)

03/ 17/ 05 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

RI CHARD MANDSAGER, M D., Director

Di vision of Public Health

Department of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information on HB 193 and
testified in support of HB 193.

STACI E KRALY, Attorney

Seni or Assistant Attorney General

Departnent of Law

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information on HB 193 and
testified in support of HB 193.

ERI CH DELAND, St aff

to Representative M ke Chenault

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 185 on behal f of
Representative M ke Chenault and answered questi ons.

BARBARA COTTI NG Staff

to Representative JimHolm

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 156 on behal f of
Representative Jim Holm and answered questions; suggested
changes to HB 156.

LI NDA GOHL, Executive Director

Al aska Comm ssion on Agi ng

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information on behalf of the
Al aska Commi ssion on Agi ng.

STEVE ASHMAN, Director

Di vision of Senior and Disability Services
Department of Health and Social Services

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- March 17, 2005



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information on behalf of the
Di vision of Senior and Disability Services.

WAYNE HAGERVAN, O D.
Sitka, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 151.

CARL RCSEN, M D
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 151.

ERI K CHRI STI ANSQN, O. D.
Ket chi kan, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 151.

W LLIE SH ELDS, M D.

Washi ngt on

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided his opinions regarding eye care
and offered relevant information pertaining to HB 151.

BOB FORD, M D
Chehalis, WA
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 151.

SAM TRI VETTE
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 151.

FRANK BI CKFORD

Al aska Soci ety of Eye Physicians Surgery

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 151.

M CHAEL BENNETT, O D.
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 151.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R PEGGY WLSON call ed the House Health, Education and Socia
Services Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 3:04:42 PM
Representatives Kohring, Anderson, and Gardner were present at
the call to order. Representati ves Seaton, Ci ssna, and MQire
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 193- LI CENSI NG MEDI CAL OR CARE FACI LI TI ES

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- March 17, 2005



CHAI R WLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 193 "An Act relating to the licensing

regul ati on, enf or cenment and appeal rights of anbulatory
surgical centers, assisted living homes, child care facilities,
child placenent agencies, foster honmes, free-standing birth
centers, hone health agencies, hospices or agencies providing
hospi ce services, hospitals, internediate care facilities for
the nmentally retarded, maternity hones, nursing facilities,
resi denti al child <care facilities, residenti al psychiatric
treatment centers, and rural health <clinics; relating to
crimnal history requirenments, and a registry, regarding certain
licenses, certifications, approvals, and authorizations by the
Department of Health and Social Services; nmaking conformng
anmendnents; and providing for an effective date."

3:06: 02 PM
RI CHARD NMANDSAGER, M D., Director, Division of Public Health,

Depar t ment of Health and Soci al Servi ces, (Departnent),
introduced the slide entitled, "PUBLIC HEALTH Protecting and

Pronoting the Health of Al Alaskans, HB 193, a Bill to
Consol i date DHSS Licensing, Certification, and Background Check
Functions.” He showed slide nunber 2 and expl ai ned:

The existing statutory and regul atory environnent
that the Departnent deals with all kinds of prograns
and facilities that range in size from nmgjor

hospitals, |like Providence, to small famly owned
assisted living hones, to hospice, to anbulatory

surgery centers, to foster famlies - there's this
whol e range of licensing and certification activities
that the Departnent does. And, two years ago the
Governor with "admnistrative order 108" ... began the

centralization process of bringing the certification
and licensing activities together into one place and
separating them from the parts of the Departnent that

pay for services ... there is sonme degree of
separation of the licensing and certifying from the
paying part of the organization. As we've started

down that journey, it has becone very apparent that
these prograns have all grown up independently
with their own sets of statutes ... regulations
appeal processes and they are sonetines simlar
many tinmes wth different steps. So, the first real
purpose here is an admnistrative sinplification and
cohesi on question about what nakes sense ... for the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- March 17, 2005



Departnment across all of these entities to make them
as simlar as possible ... in ternms of cost of
certification and licensing ... even though there's a
theory that we can bring together and centralize this
licensing function ... the training of staff to be
able to interact with nore than one type of programis
really markedly decreased ... W're aimng for a day
: when one person could go prepared to do two or
three activities rather than three separate people
going in on three separate plane trips into that

[rural] comunity. To get there, requires us ... to
try to get to much nore standardized and sinplified
rules on the state side ... on the provider side, nany
provi ders have nultiple types of progranms and for them
to keep track of separate program rules ... is an

adm ni strative cost

DR. MANDSAGER described a past situation where a provider in a
supported living home was m sappropriating funds collected from
a resident. He explained that the state does not demand a
license or background check for [supported I|iving hones] and
there was little that the state could do in terns of recourse.
He said that in Alaska there is a "nurse aid registry" and three
nurse aids were found by investigative agencies to be
mstreating residents in a nine nonth period and after the
mandatory reporting period, two had not been entered into the
registry; one case had involved physical violence. He pointed
out that tineliness issues in the current process need to be
i mproved. He added that many personal care attendants work for
nore than one agency and are required to have separate
background checks wi th each agency. He offered that doing this
once for all agencies could be nore efficient. Dr. Mandsager
revi ewed which departnent divisions and service providers would
be affected, and what woul d be standardi zed by HB 193.

3:18: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated that Representative Kohring and
she have constituents that are involved in the health care field
and provide services to people at hone, and they have inquired
as to the developnment of a database that would allow for the
detection of people who have been accused of fraud wth Medicare
billing. She explained that there is no legal way to inform
ot her agencies that this has occurred with a past enpl oyee. She
asked if the registry [nentioned by Dr. Mandsager] would include
fraud all egati ons.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- March 17, 2005



STACIE KRALY, Senior Assistant to the Attorney General
Department of Law, said that she understood the theoretical
concept behind the abuse registry to include a finding of fraud
in that context if the individual had, in fact, been term nated
for fraudulent billing activities. She explained that the idea
[for the abuse registry] is to create a civil registry that
woul d include all types of instances that a prospective enpl oyer
woul d want to know about, before hiring.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said that there are gray areas that would
i nclude there being no record of offensive behavior. She opined
that many enployees [in assisted |living honmes, or acting as care
providers] are mnimally skilled and nove from agency to agency
for a variety of reasons; it seens that there is the possibility
for "lowgrade" violations to escape prosecution in nany
i nstances, which would provide little or no information on the
registry.

3:21:31 PM

M5. KRALY said that Representative Gardner brought up a good
point and that ultimately, what is envisioned is a nechanism to
notify the state for the basis of the termnation and provide
them with sonme type of hearing. She highlighted that this is a
process that benefits both parties so that one cannot be taken
advant age of.

3:23:42 PM

DR. MANDSAGER said that the [Dvision of Public Health] is
| ooking for ideas of how to nake this [registry] have the best
value at a reasonable cost and acconplish all of the things
ment i oned.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER i nquired as to care provi ders
participating in the process [of using the registry] and asked
whom t hey shoul d contact for nore infornmation.

DR. MANDSAGER offered hinself as a contact.

3:24: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opined that there should be a hearing
process that defines limtation on liability for the enployer

and provides information on past enployees [that have committed
of fenses of sone kind]. He said that there may be difficulty in

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- March 17, 2005



the creation of a registry if enployers could face lawsuits from
past enpl oyees.

3:26:22 PM
M5. KRALY referred to HB 193 and sai d:

On page 13, section 47.32.170, there's an immunity
section, subparagraph C, which addresses the liability
and the crimnal history check but we should probably
|l ook at that with respect to the abuse registries, as
well ... W appreciate that cormment, and we'll take a
| ook at that.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRING inquired as to the description of this
| egislation as an "efficiency neasure.”

DR. MANDSAGER said that he hopes that as the population grows
and nore providers come online, that the staff required to serve
will remain the same and denonstrate efficiencies over tine.

3:28: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG inquired as to Dr. Mandsager's perception
of the nedical industry in ternms of streamining regulatory
processes.

DR. MANDSAGER said that he is also troubled by the
af orenent i oned guestion whi ch concerns regul atory
sinmplifications in a heavily regul ated industry.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE asked, "are there any new categories that
did not previously require |icensure?"

DR. MANDSAGER said that one of the anendnments that is being

worked on relates to the list on page 2, of HB 193. He
expl ai ned:
| have a concern ... as the nedical industry
evolves ... and develops nore free standing services
outside of hospitals, how do we have a list that

i ncludes sone kind of a statement that there could be
devel oped a checklist or criteria against which when
the risks of a population is high enough, that they
would then be brought into a licensed and regul ated
environment ... nore and nore services are |eaving
hospitals and going into stand al one types of service

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- March 17, 2005



delivery. At the other end of the extreme ... there's
"supported living hones" that aren't regulated ..
"assisted |living honme" starts at [page] 25 and there's

a set of criteria that are listed ... if a person is

provi ding housing and food services or assisting
with activities of daily living, this would ... say
that you need to be licensed as an assisted living
hone. Right now, there are ... places out there that
are choosing not to be licensed ... this wll try and
make it nore clear what the break point is at which
you need licensure or don't ... the staff would need
t he background check, as mnimum as this bill were to

go into place ...
3:32:26 PM

DR. MANDSAGER said that the Division of Public Health is working
on a series of anmendnments [for HB 193].

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER inquired as to the issue of enploynment
and a record of termnation [within the registry]. She then
asked if [Alaskan Statute] "47.05.20" is part of HB 193.

V. KRALY expl ained that the first statutory cite in
subparagraph C should be "47.05.310" and then it should be
"47.05. 320" and those are the statutes of reference on page 27,
of HB 193. Under "Article 3" of the bill, the new sections
under "47.05", which creates the "Crimnal History; Registry”
process and how t he background check can occur.

3:36:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON nentioned the testinmony from the Al aska
State Hospital and Nursing Hone Association, (ASHNHA), and its
liability concerns. He inquired as to what has been done to
prevent liability issues and if these <concerns have been
addressed, overall.

DR. MANDSAGER said, " ... as we envision this in statute, we
need to nmke sure that there are steps in place either in
statute or ... in regulation to nmke it <clear that the
Departnent is ready to do such an action ... you can't expose
frail elderly ... to risk, before they're noved out to another
facility ... or another provider is brought in to nmanage the
facility."

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -9- March 17, 2005



M5. KRALY clarified that the bill was drafted in an effort to
bring the 12 statutory provisions into one unbrella process, in
an effort to serve a wide spectrum of entities. Currently, if
there is a situation of immediate risk in a nursing hone, a
tenporary manager nust be contacted to go through a series of
court processes, she related. \Wen there is an assisted living
home with an individual at risk, she said, the individual would
be renoved and the due-process hearing would occur |ater. She
clarified that the instances that ASHNA had nentioned in their
letter would be dealt with using the tenporary manager, and
court process, because from a |egal and managenent standpoint,
it would not be plausible to take over a large institution.

3:40: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired as to the "taking over" of
smal l er assisted living hones if they are found to be "at risk"
si tuati ons.

M5. KRALY it would all be laid out through regulation, and nore
often than not, a resident would be renpbved before a "hone" was
"t aken over."

CHAIR WLSON nentioned the "Position Paper on House Bill 193
Ofered by Rod Betit, President of ASHNHA, " and inquired as to
t he Departnent addressing the concerns that were |isted.

DR. MANDSAGER said that the <current regulations allow for

gradation within the assisted living situations. The bal ance
poi nt between a nursing hone and a "level 3" in a pioneer hone,
for exanple, is the discussion point. In light of the function

pi oneer hones have, he opined that in order to continue that
| evel of home-based, social service, kind of care, rather than
medi cal care, regulation opportunities will have to be created.

CHAIR WLSON commented on the slow physical deterioration of
individuals wthin care facilities and the adaptation of
different forns of care that evol ve.

DR. MANDSAGER stated that one nmjor issue concerns fire
mar shal s. In a pioneer hone, a fire marshal would require that
people be able to readily get out and if soneone had physically
deteriorated to a certain level [where they could not readily
get out], then that person would have to nove to another
facility.

3:45:19 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 10- March 17, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA commented that she would |like to stay
informed as Dr. Mndsager and others nake nore decisions and
nodi fi cati ons on HB 193.

DR. MANDSAGER opined that in reality, HB 193 is unlikely to pass
this legislative session. He advocated for noving through the
process, making nodifications, hearing concerns, and com ng back
next year with a clearer version of HB 193.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE opi ned that, in many instances, |anguage
within HB 193 is unqualified. She referred to page 14, line 22,
and said that this section was a very broad "access to
i nformation" clause. She encouraged Dr. Mandsager to spend tine
looking at HB 193 and qualifying sections that are |acking
specific information.

DR. MANDSAGER expl ained that the advantage of having introduced
the bill is it is now public and can be inspected from many
poi nts of view He said he hopes that there wll be neeting
over the summer and fall and then, HB 193 can be acted on next
W nter.

MS. KRALY clarified:

The genesis of this section 1, which is a centralized
licensing and related admnistrative procedures, 99

percent of that is current |aw It's just been cut
and pasted and cleaned up ... to <create one,
centralized licensing statute. |If you |ook at nost of
it, it's not pulled out of the pie in the sky type
t houghts, we're currently using these statutes - it
just pulls it into one ... we took the best of the

best, we felt and we cleaned up the problens that we
see we've envisioned in enforcing and advising the
departnment and created this centralized panel, there
are questions and issues and we knew there would be -
but just so that's clear, we tried to take what was
good and nmake it a little bit better.

[ HB 193 was hel d over.]

HB 185- POSTSECONDARY STUDENT | MVUNI ZATI ON

3:52: 53 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- March 17, 2005



CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 185 "An Act relating to inmunization of
post secondary students for neningitis; and providing for an
effective date."

ERIC DELAND, Staff to Representative M ke Chenault, presented
the sponsor statenent for HB 185 on behalf of Representative
Chenaul t. He described how a man in Al aska, age nineteen, was
overcone with a neningococcal disease and becane brain dead
wi thin several hours of the onset of synptons. He informed that
meni ngococcal disease has a 15 percent nortality rate. What
this bill tries to do, he related, is renove the exenption so
t hat post-secondary institutions shall provide information about
viral and bacterial neningococcal diseases and their risk. He
said that the students shall also sign a docunent stating that
they have received this information and can have the option of
I mmuni zat i on. He enphasized that there is no requirenment for
i mruni zation in HB 185. He said that the Center for D sease
Control, the American Acadeny of Physicians, and the Anerican
Acadeny of Pediatrics recomrend i muni zations for post-secondary
st udent s.

CHAIR WLSON comented that immunization requirenments concerning
meni ngococcal disease are required for some groups of people but
that there are known exenptions. She offered religious beliefs
as an exanpl e of an exenption.

MR. DELAND explained that the passage of HB 185 w Il enable
post - secondary student s to receive i nformation about
meni ngococcal di sease. He said that post-secondary students
live in high-risk environnments for the spread of neningococca
di sease

CHAIR WLSON clarified that this bill does not require
i mmuni zati on of students.

MR. DELAND stated that it requires post-secondary schools to
provide information pertaining to neningococcal disease and
i nformati on about i nmunizati on.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if there are various types of
meni ngococcal di sease.

MR. DELAND said that neningococcal disease can be viral or
bacterial. He inforned that there are many different strains.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- March 17, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER inquired as to the effectiveness of the
i mmuni zation for all of the types of meningococcal disease.

MR. DELAND stated that the imunization is effective, regardl ess
of the strain of neningococcal disease.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG inquired as to the necessity of passing
HB 185 and creating statute around this issue. He asked if
school s are inforned about neni ngococcal disease.

MR. DELAND said that nost schools around the country are
requiring inmunizations but it is not required in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG asked if schools in Alaska know that
nmeni ngococcal di sease is a problem

MR. DELAND opi ned that schools should know [about neningococca
di sease] and the purpose of HB 185 is to provide necessary
information so that students can make a decision regarding
I mmuni zat i on.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRING inquired as to the distribution of
letters to schools as an attenpt to inform as opposed to
creating | egislation.

MR. DELAND clarified that HB 185 is related to post-secondary
school s.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG offered that the letters be distributed

to post-secondary schools. He expressed his wuncertainty of
creating a bill to informstudents of a di sease.
VR. DELAND restated that not al | institutions provide

i nformati on on neni ngococcal disease.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG inquired as to the cost associated wth
the distribution of information.

MR. DELAND explained that there is a [health] packet handed out
to new students at post-secondary schools and this information
woul d be included in that packet.

3:59: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUIRE said, "W're requiring that information
be given but we're not requiring immunization?"

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 13- March 17, 2005



MR. DELAND said that is correct.
REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE asked why i muni zation is not required.

MR. DELAND said that the reasons are simlar to those brought up
by Chair WI son. He described the issues concerning religious
beliefs, and opined that each individual should rmake their own
decisions [to imunize].

REPRESENTATIVE MCGUIRE related that, in her experi ence,
i mmuni zations were required when attendi ng school .

CHAIR WLSON clarified that there are other exenptions. She
comented that sone people don't believe in immunizing their
children, and that, based on her experience as a school nurse
for many years, there are many reasons why people choose not to
be i muni zed.

4:00: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUIRE inquired as to the nunber of states that
require inmuni zati on [of neni ngococcal disease].

RI CHARD MANDSACER, M D., Director, Division of Public Health,
Department of Health and Social Services, stated that there are
two varieties of neningococcal vaccine for this organism for
Nei serria meningitidis. He explained that this is the kind of
meningitis that makes people fearful. He said:

sonebody gets sick with flu synptons and can be dead
in a few hours. Thankfully, it's very rare. There is

a small, increased risk if you are a freshman in a
college dormor in the mlitary, and that's where the
epidem cs back ... during WWI, were first recognized.

A coupl e things have changed this winter, the Anerican
Council on Infectious Practices has just changed its
recommendati ons about the vaccine for Nei serria

meningitidis ... and is now recomending, because
there is a new vaccine available this wnter, that al

people ... get it ... wthin a few years, this is
going to be comon practice for nost kids entering
post -secondary institutions . col l eges already
include it in their information ... we in the
[ Departnent of Health and Social Services] are fairly
neutral on this bill for sone of the reasons that
Representative Kohring just stated ... there's a snal

nunber of post-graduate colleges in this state and

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- March 17, 2005



couldn't we persuade them to voluntarily include [a
letter] rather than have a statute, given the fact
that i mmuni zation practices over the next five years,
nost kids, by the tinme they go off to college, are
going to be imunized already with a new vaccine.
Your question is specifically how many states have
requi renents for either information or vaccination or
not hi ng, nost have noved to ... either requiring
information or requiring imunization and there's a
m xture across the country but it's going to change
fairly quickly now with the change in immunization

practices. W are a universal inmunization state and
we don't have to include this vaccine because of the
vaccine for kids which is the federal program ... as
long as we renmain a universal vaccine state, all of
our kids in this state will be offered, and the only
kids that won't be inmunized will be the famlies that
choose not to get vaccinated, but it will get joined
into the requirenment for school attendance over this
next year ... | recognize the ... interest in the
bill, but the timng is interesting given the change

in vaccine as to how necessary it is, given it's going
t o happen, anyhow.

4:04: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE expressed her belief that if [the
| egislature] makes a fundanental policy shift to require
i mruni zations, then that should be the Ilaw created. She
inquired as to the requirenents of imunizations at the |oca
| evel for students, before entering school.

DR. MANDSAGER said that over this next year, because Alaska is a
"universal vaccine state", the Departnent wll be putting up
proposed regulations that [nmeningococcal disease vaccine] wll
get added to the schools for students in grades K-12. He opi ned
that over the next six nonths the [neningococcal disease
vaccine] will be added in; the [Departnent of Health and Socia
Services] will have to put out regulations proposing to anend
t he mandat ory vaccine policies for schools and, if that happens,
over the next few years all of the teenagers are going to get
vacci nat ed.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE clarified that the [neningococcal disease
vaccine] will be a requirenent for students in grades K-12.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- March 17, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that HB 185 deals specifically with
post - secondary students. He asked if regulations proposed by
the state will apply for post-secondary schools.

DR. MANDSAGER said that the state has no authority to regulate
I muni zation in post-secondary school s.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER inquired as to the document nentioned in
HB 185 where the student's imunization status is recorded. She
asked how | ong this docunent woul d be kept and by whom

MR. DELAND said that the docunent would be kept while the
student was attending that institution, by the institution.

4:07:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE noved to report HB 185 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER obj ect ed. She said that if this bill
were to pass, she anticipates repealing it when regul ations are
revi sed. She said that she is not in favor of passing a bil
that may not be needed.

CHAIR WLSON remnded Representative Gardner that the new
regul ations would apply to grades K-12, and HB 185 is dealing
W th post-secondary school s.

A roll call vote was taken. Represent ati ves Anderson, MQiire,
Seaton, Cissna, and WIson voted in favor of reporting HB 185
out of conmttee. Representative Gardner voted against it.
Representative Kohring was absent for the vote. Therefore, HB
185 was reported from the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee by a vote of 5-1.

4:09:52 PM

HB 156- COVM SSI ON ON  AG NG

CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 156 "An Act relating to the nenbership of the
Al aska Commission on Aging; and providing for an effective
date."

BARBARA COTTING Staff to Representative Jim Holm presented HB
156 on behal f of Representative Holm She explained that within

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 16- March 17, 2005



the conmmittee packet, the sponsor statenent, sectional analysis,
and her coments are addressed to the committee substitute
because the original bill had suggested changes.

4:11: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 156, Version 24-LS0615\F, M schel
3/2/05, as a work draft. There being no objection, Version F
was adopt ed.

M5. COTTI NG explained that in 2003, Governor Mirkowski issued an
executive order that transferred the Al aska Commi ssion on Aging,
(ACoA), from the Departnent of Admnistration to the Departnent
of Health and Soci al Servi ces. In 2004, she related,
Representative Hol m sponsored HB 394 which put that change into
statute; it also changed the "sunset" date from 2004 to 2008.
She said that HB 156 makes a change in conpliance with the
wi shes of the ACoA She pointed out that at the ACoA February
2005 quarterly neeting, what was requested was that a vacancy be
filled by a senior services provider, regardless of age, and
that the provider be a recipient of a division of senior and
disabilities grant under the senior grant program She added
that the ACoA felt strongly that the expertise that would be
provi ded would be a good thing for the ACoA. She requested that
the commttee insert the phrase, "regardless of age" in HB 156

on page 1, line 11, after "senior services provider."

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER inquired as to who would be included in
t he pool of "grant recipients” nentioned.

4:14:13 PM

LI NDA GOHL, executive director, Al aska Conmm ssion on Aging, said
there's a variety of services under the senior grant program
including nutrition, transportation support services, in-hone
services for hone and community based care, chore respite, and
Al zhei mer' s support services.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if the people who admnister the
af orenenti oned prograns obtain the grants.

M5. GOHL said grant recipients could be project coordinators or
a board nmenber for a non-profit organization; they are people
providing direct services as part of an agency. She expl ai ned
that the ACoA was asked, prior to the neeting, to consider this
seat being a provider seat and they thought it wuld be

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- March 17, 2005



beneficial to the comunity, as well as to the providers,
beneficiaries, and stakehol ders.

4:15:53 PM

STEVE ASHVAN, Director, Division of Senior and D sability
Services, said that under statute, the recipients of grants have
to be a 501(c)3, a nmunicipal governnent, or a "triba
gover nnent . "

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER i nquired as to the "ethics act."

M5. GOHL said that the ACoA is no longer receiving grant
proposal s, review ng grant proposals, naking recommendations for
grant awards, nor involved in any way in the grant award
process.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER clarified that there aren't conflicts
with grant recipients.

MS. GOHL said that is correct. She conti nued:

The Departnent has essentially taken over that
function, within the Division of Senior and Disability
Services and the <centralized grants and contracts
adm nistration unit, and then the Comm ssioner [of the
Departnment] or his designee is the only individual who
is actually signing grant awards ... there could be a
potential conflict ... when the [ACoA] works on the
state plan of services that has to be produced every
two to three years and submtted to the federa

government in order to receive continuing funds under
the O der Americans Act, we have to do a formula
allocation which is a geographic allocation for how
the grant awards w il be distributed throughout the
state and there's different criteria and elenments and
factors that make up this chart of how the awards and
the total funds will be allocated, and there could be
a potential conflict if this provider were in an area
that was going to see a loss, perhaps, or a gain in
funding in their geographic area ... the conm ssion
di scussed any potential ... conflicts of interest ...

and they decided during the February neeting that they
woul d ask the individual to refrain fromvoting.

4:19:15 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- March 17, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to adopt Anendnment 1, as foll ows:

Page 1, line 11, follow ng "senior services provider"
I nsert "regardl ess of age"

There being no objection, it was so ordered.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG noved to report CSHB 156, as anended, out
of comm ttee with i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB
156(HES) was reported from the House Health, Education and
Soci al Services Standing Conmittee.

HB 151- RESPONSI Bl LI TY FOR CARE AFTER EYE SURGERY

CHAI R W LSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 151 "An Act relating to provider responsibility
for ocular postoperative care; and providing for an effective
date."

4:21:38 PM

VWAYNE HAGERMAN, O.D., explained that he has been practicing as
a private optometrist in Sitka, Alaska since 1984. He stated
his opposition to HB 151 and that it wll have a detrinental
effect to the conmunity of Sitka. |In Sitka, he described, there
is a conmunity hospital and a visiting ophthal nol ogi st that has
provi ded service since 1997 and provi des cataract surgery to the
comunity nenbers. He said that the ophthal nologist, Dr. Tim
Gard, is fromthe Hllsboro Eye clinic in O egon. He pointed
out that [Dr. Gard] has provided these services to the comunity
hospital as a benefit to the community, especially the senior
citizens who are wunable to travel elsewhere to have these

surgi cal procedures attended to. He enphasized that he has
worked closely with Dr. Gard for seven years and co-nmanaged
these patients without difficulty. He opined that it would

cause undue hardship for Dr. Gard to have to remain in Sitka for
five days followng eye surgery and w shes the conmttee would
reconsi der the passing of HB 151.

4:23:31 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON inquired as to Dr. Hagerman's position
if the bill were anended to require a two-day stay follow ng

post -operative surgery, as opposed to the original five-day
st ay.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- March 17, 2005



DR. HAGERMVAN stated that there is not a resident ophthal nol ogi st
in Sitka so there is no possibility to refer patients to another
surgeon. He said that the 48-hour change is anenabl e.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON asked if Dr. Hagerman preferred the two
day anendnent as opposed to the 5 day stay [followi ng eye
surgery].

DR. HAGERVMAN said that he preferred a two-day requirenent but
that a 24-hour requirenment would be nore than adequate [for an
opht hal nol ogi st to stay in the area follow ng eye surgery].

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER inquired as to patients in Sitka needing
the services of an ophthal nol ogi st when one was not avail abl e.

DR. HAGERWAN said that there is an understandi ng between hinself
and the ophthal nologist that when there is sone conplication
that goes beyond the level of expertise [of the optonetrist],
t he visiting ophthal nol ogi st would stay and deal with it.

REPRESENTATI VE  GARDNER asked what woul d  happen if t he
conplication arose after the ophthal nologist left [Sitka].

DR. HAGERVAN stated that he and the ophthalnologist are in
constant conmmuni cation about the followup care of these
patients and the situation described has not yet arisen.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired as to the practicality of setting
the two-day [ophthal nol ogi st] stay requirenent after eye
surgery. He asked Dr. Hagerman what his opinion was concerning
this stay requirenent.

DR. HAGERMAN said that generally, it is within a day or tw days
after the surgery.

4:26:17 PM

CHAIR WLSON stated that HB 151 has been difficult [for her] and
that she has been indecisive. She explained that she called Dr.
Gard [the ophthal nol ogi st serving Sitka] and |earned that many
of his patients are residents of the pioneer home and would be
unable to leave [Sitka] for surgical procedures. She rel ated
that Dr. Gard infornms his patients that they will have to fly to
Seattle if there are conplications after he |eaves Sitka. She
reported that Dr. Gard said that he could deal wth the two-day
stay requirenent after surgery, and that he would still serve
Sitka's needs. She stated that Dr. Gard had a question

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- March 17, 2005



concerning the stay requirenment and it extending to the patient.
She said that he asked if the legislation would require the
patient to stay two extra days after surgery, because many tinmes
t hey do not.

REPRESENTATI VE  ANDERSON interjected t hat t here are no
requirenents related to the patient staying in the area where
t he surgery occurred.

CHAI R WLSON explained that Dr. Gard had said that many tinmes he
has stayed to nake sure that every patient was taken care of.
She said that she had asked if there was any tine when soneone
had to fly to Seattle [for energency care] and [Dr. Gard] had
said, "No, that has never happened."” She opined that the 5-day
requirenent [for the ophthalnologist to stay in the area where
surgery occurred] is too nuch. She nentioned a letter fromthe
Medi cal Association which pronoted the 5-day stay requirenent
for opht hal nol ogi sts, but acqui esced to the 2-day amendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON stated that in the packet, the Al aska
State Medical Association sent a letter on March 4, 2005 which
stated that they represent physicians across the state and they
support HB 151. He said that they didn't reference the 2 versus
5 days [stay requirenment] and there may be a discrepancy about
whi ch associ ation is being discussed.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from4:30:32 PMto 4:30:55 PM
4: 30: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON clarified that a letter from the
Ameri can Acadeny of Ophthal nol ogy, dated March 15, 2005 stated
support of HB 151. He explained that this letter was an attenpt
to indicate the areas of concern regarding comon surgical
conplications and they reference that within the first 48 hours
certain conplications can occur.

CHAIR responded that Dr. Gard teaches future ophthal nologists
and optonetrists and he said that his concerns [for post-
operative care] included increased pressure or infection.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that in the letter from the
Ameri can Acadeny of Ophthal nology, the listed conplications are
those that can occur in the first 48 hours [after surgery] but
it is not clear that they support the 48-hour stay requirenent
as opposed to the original 5-day stay requirenent.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- March 17, 2005



4:33:15 PM

CARL ROSEN, MD., clarified that 48 hours wll cover comon
conplications and 5 days is preferred as it wll cover all
aspects of possible patient conplications after cataract or
i nterocul ar surgery. He stated that, "two days, if that's what
it takes to get inproved patient quality of care, then we can
accept that."

CHAIR WLSON stated that if there is no anendnent there could be
the risk of ophthalnologists refraining from serving renote
areas within Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON noted that the letter from the Anmerican
Acadeny of Ophthal nol ogy states, "The enactnent of HB 151
will insure that patients have access to a surgeon within the 48
hour wi ndow in which the conplications from eye surgery could
occur."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that as he reads the letter, it does
not say that they are revising their recomrendation from 5 days
to 48 hours. He pointed out that the letter is saying that
certain conplications can occur within 48 hours.

4:35:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON stated that the Anmerican Acadeny of
Opht hal nol ogy enconpasses all of the nedical physicians who
practice ophthal nology and they recomrend [the ophthal nol ogi st
to remain after surgery] 5 days. He said that the House Heal th,
Education and Social Services Standing Commttee prefers the
anended 2 day stay requirenent.

CHAIR WLSON said that it is obvious that American Acadeny of
Opht hal nol ogy is aware of the anmendnent and that they endorse HB
151 with the 2-day anendnent.

4:36: 32 PM

ERI C CHRI STI ANSON, O.D., said that he has been an optonetrist in
Ket chi kan since 1990, and there is not a full time
opht hal nol ogi st . He explained that there is an ophthal nol ogy
group that rotates through Ketchikan one week a nmonth and they
perform surgeries. He nentioned that since 1990, he has been
involved with 3 or 4 eye care energencies and nost occurred
within a few days after surgery. He said that in Ketchikan,

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- March 17, 2005



ol der surgical techniques are used and the results aren't as
good. He said that he refers his patients to Seattle. He said:

When | refer to a surgeon, | am counting on the skill
of the surgeon and the ability of his particular team
that he has put together to take care of the patient

the outconmes of surgery are nuch better when you
have a team and that includes the surgeon, but it also
includes the other staff nenbers in the office,
including optonetrists to manage the patient and
return them at an appropriate tine. The opposition
that | have to this bill is ... the legislature
shoul dn't be regulating comanagenent. It should be
regul ated by the boards. | was a board nenber ... for
eight years ... | have never heard one peep from the
Medi cal Board regarding any problens w th comanagenent
Wi th optonetrists ...

4:39: 54 PM

CHAIR WLSON stated that she called the Medical Board and they
don't meet wuntil next nonth. She said that she considered
holding this bill until next nonth to give the Mdical Board a

chance to respond to the issues related to HB 151.

DR. CHRI STI ANSON stated that his concern is that passing HB 151

is opening a "huge can of worns." He said that passing this
| egislation would affect comanagenent decisions of health care
professionals in rural conmunities. He enphasized that when

referring for surgery, health care providers are counting on the
clinical judgnment of the surgeon that is being referred to.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked how long patients stay in Seattle
after their surgery is conplete.

DR. CHRI STI ANSON said that, typically, a patient will see the
surgeon, have the surgery conpleted, and see the surgeon the
foll ow ng day. Depending on the procedure, if a patient is
stable enough there is no reason for them to stay |onger. He
related that he then sees the patient for a follow up 7 days
after the surgery. He pointed out that his responsibility for
the patient occurs as soon as they are released from the
surgical facility.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if it was accurate to say, assum ng

there are no problens, that after a patient has surgery they are
seen by the surgeon the foll ow ng day and then can return hone.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 23- March 17, 2005



DR. CHRI STI ANSON replied that is correct.
4:42: 42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that he has had a problem with HB
151 in that there is a "board process.” He said that with [Dr.
Christianson's] testinony, as the Chair of the State Medical
Board, it is clear that this issue has not been addressed by
opht hal nol ogi st s.

DR. CHRISTIANSON clarified that he is a part of the "Optonetry
Board. "

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that the HESS conmittee is trying to
get information from the State Medical Board because the issues
surrounding HB 151 are wthin the Board's jurisdiction to

regul at e. He pointed out that there is no information on
opht hal nol ogi sts appealing to the State Medi cal Board and asking
for assistance with this issue. He added that he has real

concern about |egislating particular medical procedures in place
of the State Medical Board.

4:44: 39 PM
REPRESENTATI VE MCGQUI RE referred to HB 151 and sai d:

on page 2, line 13 ... ny understanding is that if the
distance the patient would have to travel to the
regular office of the operating surgeon would result
in an unreasonable hardship of the patient ... it is
an excepti on.

DR.  CHRI STIANSON pointed out that HB 151 states that co
managenent agreenents nmay occur only when the patient nust
endure an unreasonable hardship to travel to the operating
sur geon.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUIRE said that in many places in Alaska, the
situation of "unreasonable hardship” would apply. She inquired
as to nedical nmal practice insurance requirenents.

DR. CHRISTIANSON replied that he carries $3 mllion in
mal practi ce insurance.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 24- March 17, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE MCGQUIRE inquired as to the anount of mal practice
i nsurance that the ophthal nologist that Dr. Christianson works
with carries.

DR. CHRISTIANSON clarified that he does not work wth the
opht hal nol ogi st; he refers patients to an ophthal nol ogi st. He
said that there is no financial connection.

4:47:04 PM
REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE sai d:

pl ease understand that the sponsor's intentions are
not to be disrespectful to you, nor are mne ... | got
a couple of emails that said ... | was saying that |
didn't think optonetrists were valuable, or inportant,
or professionals and that's just the absol ute opposite

of how | feel. | think that ... your profession is
extrenmely inportant, valuable, that the patient care
is great - | have an optonetrist, | need them | have
terrible eyes - so, | just want to get that on record,

but back to the nedical malpractice insurance, when
you enter into these conanagenent agreenents, is there

a direct shift in liability that occurs ... one of the
things ... | have a concern about is, when things go
well they go well, and then when they don't, with the
eyes, it's a disaster ... the surgeon cones in, does
the surgery, gets on a plane, |eaves, and now you're
there and you are dealing with ... a problem on your
hands. In the co-nmanagenent agreenent ... is the

l[itability for nedical malpractice then shifted to you
for the primary act of the surgeon ...

4:48: 44 PM

DR. CHRI STI ANSON stated that he is not well versed in nedica
mal practi ce.

DR. ROSEN said that nalpractice is shared, but the primry
responsibility ultimately falls on the surgeon's hands.

4:49: 34 PM
CHAIR WLSON i nquired as to when co nanagenent occurs.

DR. CHRI STIANSON said that he refers patients to a specific
surgeon after he has diagnosed them He said that patients |ike

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 25- March 17, 2005



to get back within a reasonable tinme frane to avoid high trave
costs. He enphasized that he trusts the surgeon to return the
patient at a time when they feel it is appropriate.

CHAIR WLSON clarified that patients usually return honme, from
Seattle, by the second day after surgery.

DR. CHRI STI ANSON said that is correct except if they have other
plans in Seattle, as well.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON stated his belief that this bill isn't
about comanagenment as much as it is about the surgeon staying
for two days after surgery is perforned. He reiterated

Representative MQuire's comment that the distance an Al askan
patient would have to travel for surgery would constitute
"hardshi p* and asked for a comment regarding this.

DR. CHRI STI ANSON stated that decisions related to patient care

are for the surgeon to decide. He enphasized that the Al aska
State Medical Board should decide if regulations are needed for
specific situations regarding patient care and nmanagenent. He
opi ned that regulating patient care is not up to the |egislature
to nmandate. He said that attenpting to pass HB 151 is
"precedent setting” |egislation.

4:53: 02 PM

DR.  WLLY SH ELDS, ophthalnologist, inforned that he has

specialty training in retina care. He said that he has patients
referred to him from optonetrists and from opht hal nol ogi sts and
that though the bulk of his patients are referred fromthe state
of Washington, there are sonme patients who cone from Al aska. He
said that, as a result, he is affected by the co-nmanagenent
rel ati onship. He continued:

| certainly have ny opinions about how co managenent
can work ... when | think about the state of Al aska
and how things are spread out ... |, personally, think
that it's going to be very difficult to take care of
patients in the larger sense wthout having a co-
managenent system The problem that | see that
surfaces when there is an attenpt to have rules or
regul ati ons about co managenent, obviously you want to
make sure that there is a certain level of quality

that is adhered to, and | think that that 1is
fundanental |y our responsibility whet her
opht hal nol ogi sts or optonetrists, but the major

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 26- March 17, 2005



problem ... is it is difficult to set up co

managenent ... rules that forgive ... co managenent
rel ati onshi ps between rural settings ... and ... co
managenent in a kind of wurban ... setting. The
challenge is , how do you say that it is okay to have
co managenent in one setting and not the other. As
Dr. Christianson has said ... if there is a good
relationship and | know that kind of care that the
optonetrist can provide in their comunity then | am

perfectly okay with the patient going back.

CHAIR WLSON inquired as to Dr. Shields' opinion on the two-day
stay requirenent issue related to HB 151.

DR. SH ELDS related that there are tines when a patient wll
undergo surgery, and return hone the follow ng day. He said
that, depending on the patient and the situation, the tinme
frames change. He added that there are instances where patients
woul d be advised to abstain fromtravel because of conplications
wi th healing process.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGQUI RE rem nded Dr. Shields that HB 151 pertains
to surgeons performng eye surgery in Al aska. She expl ai ned
that it is not uncommon for the legislature to make different
rules pertaining to rural parts of the state than for wurban
[areas in Al aska].

DR. SHI ELDS thanked the commttee and all participants for the
efforts involved in understanding HB 151. He responded to line
14, within HB 151, and inquired as to the definition of
"hardship."

CHAIR WLSON stated that "hardship” can sinply be that an
i ndi vidual would not be able to afford airfare [required for
travel related to eye surgery].

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER confirned that Dr. Shields advocated for
the practice of sending a patient home 24 hours after surgery.

DR. SH ELDS said that is appropriate in nmany circunstances. He
enphasi zed that follow up care would be involved after surgery.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON asked Dr. Shields if he wunderstood
Representative MQ@iire's earlier clarification regarding HB 151
being applicable only within the state of Alaska; he asked if
Dr. Shields had perfornmed surgery in Al aska; he asked how Dr.
Shi el ds was contacted to testify before the committee.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -27- March 17, 2005



DR. SHI ELDS said that he understood the clarification regarding
HB 151; he replied that he had never performed surgery within
Al aska; he said that he was contacted by Paul Barney, an
optonetrist who works for the Pacific Cataract Goup in
Anchor age and has recei ved phone calls fromDr. M chael Bennett.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER sai d, "Representative Seaton tal ked about
a letter of support [for HB 151] from the "nedical board" and

in ny packet | have a letter of support from the Al aska
State  Medical Associ ati on, which is an association of
practitioners, not the board; am | m ssing sonething?" She said
that she is hoping to clarify as there is a big distinction
bet ween the "nedi cal board" and the "nedi cal association.”

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON stated that Representative Gardner is
correct and the Al aska State Medical Association endorses HB
151, not the Al aska Medi cal Board.

5:05:41 PM

BOB FORD, MD., ophthalnologist, said that he lives in
Washington state but that he established an office [Pacific
Cataract and Laser Institute] in Anchorage, seven years ago. He
st at ed:

| believe ... all of the ophthal nologists and the
optonetrists agree that the surgeon is the captain of
the ship for post-operative care, and the surgeon
feels that responsibility and he is going to be sure
that it is done and there are two ways to do that: he
can do it hinself ... and that is good ... but it is
also very legitimate to delegate things and if vyou
have quality people that you trust, you can del egate.
| come up typically on Mnday and 1'Il typically
operate for three days - Tuesday, Wdnesday and
Thursday and then | go honme ... the only reason |'m
confortable doing that is because | have a very
skillful optonetrist that's the full-tinme doctor there
: ny office is open 5 days a week ... for post-
operative care. I"ve cared for, literally, thousands
of patients with Dr. Barney and | know he's very quick

to recognize ... [post-operative conplications]
: |"ve done approximately 8,000 surgeries in the
|ast 7 years, in Anchorage ... | have had three cases
that have needed ny attention post-operatively, none
of them wthin the first 48 hours, interestingly

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 28- March 17, 2005



enough, and those 3 cases | took care of, one of them
three weeks after surgery ... so this bill wouldn't
have addressed that ... ny thoughts and feelings on
this are very colored by ny experience with nmy father.
My father was a famly doctor and | watched him work
with surgeons and | could tell that ny dad's patients

trusted ny dad ... and the surgeons trusted ny dad
too, and they'd get the patients right back to ny dad
for post-operative care ... it was good for the
patients because ny dad knew them better than anybody
else did ... | believe that patients nowadays want the
same thing for their eye surgery. If their doctor is
a surgeon, they'll want their doctor to do the surgery

and care for them afterward, if their doctor isn't a
surgeon, which is the case of 80 percent of the
patients in Al aska because 80 percent of the eye
doctors are not surgeons in Alaska ... they're going
to ask their doctor ... who should do ny surgery and
their doctor will set that up and then they're going
to want to be right back in the care of their doctor
as soon as possible. | don't see that you can set a
specific time that works ... | haven't had a single
case, not one case, where the fact that | went hone
Thursday ni ght caused any harm to any patients ... if
you pass this Ilegislation, then | wll certainly
cooperate with it, and I'lIl spend another two days up
here at the end ... | don't think the legislation is
needed and it would hanper the way | practice, which a
ot of patients like and a |lot of doctors like ... but
. | trust your judgnent and ... ['Il cooperate to
the best of ny ability.

5:11: 01 PM

CHAIR WLSON inquired as to the costs associated [for patients]
if HB 151 passes and Dr. Ford would be required to stay in
Anchorage for an additional day; she asked if the passing of HB
151 would make Dr. Ford hesitate about comng to Alaska to
perform surgery.

DR. FORD replied that if he were required to stay an additiona

day after surgery, he would not charge patients extra. He
clarified that he does not pay optonetrists for conanagenent,
and that they bill separately. In response to Chair WIlson's

second question, Dr. Ford stated that he m ght hesitate but that
he feels a strong conmtment to serve with his colleagues at
their practice.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 29- March 17, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said that a surgeon that perforns eye
surgery in this state can delegate the responsibility of post-
operative care to another ophthal nol ogist, according to HB 151.
She pointed out that Dr. Ford could easily delegate and one of
his partners could provide post-operative care, and that his
practice would, in essence, not be affected by HB 151.

5:13: 00 PM

DR. FORD st at ed:
my partner, the one that sees all of ny patients,
"post-op" up here, Dr. Barney, he is an optonetrist,

not an ophthalnologist. And | feel that this bil
is anti-optonetry, it really is, because the spirit

behind this bill is optonetrist's are not capable of
doing first quality, post-operative care ... | believe
the way | do it is first rate ... | believe Dr. Barney
is just as able to screen for problens, as anybody
el se. In fact, he's probably seen nore cataract
surgeries, "post-op" than the average ophthal nol ogi st
has.
5:13:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON inquired as to Dr. Ford' s opinion
regarding the Acadeny of Ophthal nology's guidelines on post-
operative surgical care.

DR. FORD said that the typical ophthalnologist is opposed to
comanagenent . He explained that there is a conflict between
optonetri sts and ophthal nol ogi sts because optonetry is a group
of forward |ooking, anbitious people and they've noved forward
in their ability to diagnose and treat disease, which is
threatening to ophthal nol ogi sts. The Anerican Acadeny of
Opht hal nol ogy is fundanental | y not very supportive of
comanagenent, he related, and there's hard feelings between
opht hal nol ogy and optonetry at the |eadership |evels because of
the struggle of the expansion of practice. He added that he is
nore pro-comanagenent than the |eadership of the Anerican
Acadeny of Ophthal nology is and respectfully disagrees with the
Acadeny on this subject of comanagenent.

REPRESENTATIVE MCGUIRE inquired as to whether Dr. Ford takes
"Cal I . n

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 30- March 17, 2005



DR. FORD replied that he does not take "call" [ability to be
avai lable for of-hours nedical energency calls] and it has
created negative feelings between him and sone of the other
opht hal nol ogi st s. He explained that he has recently decided
that it would be fair to take "call" and is in the process of
setting the situation up so that he can rotate call wth other
opht hal nol ogi sts in his office.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE sai d:

at the root of this bill | think there are sone of us
that are supportive of it for the reason that we want
to attract ... retain ... nore nedical doctors,

opht hal nol ogi sts, to our conmunity that are going to
live in our community and be here to service the needs
of the people that live in our state ... | suspect

that if | said "Wwuld you be willing to fly your plane
up here, on a nonent's notice, to take care of
sonmebody that had a very serious eye energency that
had not paid you for an eye treatnent"” ... you would
probably say no and that's kind of the point | am
getting at ... it's an opportunity to cone in, |
understand ... but that being said, you don't stick
around and | appreciate what you said on the record
t oday about the "call."

CHAIR WLSON interrupted and stated that Representati ve
McGQuire's cooments are not related to HB 151.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE sai d:

the point of this is that if we allow certain
procedures to create a market, then we deter sone

people from entering the market ... the only other
final analogy | have is, paralegals, ... | have net
sonme paralegals that are sonme of the nobst conpetent
people ... | have net paralegals that are smarter than
a lot of the lawers that | have net and so life
experience, and working on the job can nake you
extrenely conpetent. So, this is not about
optonetrists not being conpetent ... the choice that's

made at the outset is your own, about whether vyou
choose to get a nedical degree or whether you choose
to get an optonetry degree ..

5:20: 23 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 31- March 17, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired as to Dr. Ford participating in
comanagenent arrangenents.

DR FORD said that for the last 20 years, alnost all of his
pati ents have been comanaged.

SAM TRI VETTE said that he had eye surgery in Seattle and could
have instead [had eye surgery] in Anchorage, and if he had, this
bill would have had inpact. He explained that he was referred
[for surgery] to an ophthal nol ogi st by his optonetrist in Juneau
and after the surgery, was seen by his local optonetrist for
foll owup post-operative care. He said that if the followup
care had to have been done by an ophthal nol ogi st, he woul d have
had real difficulty as there is only one ophthal nology group in
Juneau and he has had negative past experiences with them He

explained, "if | had to stay for 48 hours because an
opht hal nol ogi st woul d not do a comanagenent, | would have to eat
that noney and that's expensive, hotels are not cheap anynore
and neals are not either. | feel this bill is unnecessary and |
don't think the legislature should be forcing this on the
medi cal system” He enphasized that this is an issue that is

between him and his physician and he does not understand why
statute i s necessary.

5:24:58 PM

FRANK BICKFORD said that Dr. Ford spoke of a potential war
bet ween optonetry and ophthalnology in his testinony and there
is a need to clarify this. He infornmed that optonetrists do a
good job at what they do and what they are trained to do and
that optonetrists and ophthal nol ogi sts get along in Al aska. He
sai d:

The frustrating point that | heard today, was Dr. Ford

stating, if he can't come back to Anchorage, he'll
have his optonetrist cone from Qutside. There are
opht hal nol ogi sts in Anchorage, why not add those
opht hal nol ogi st s as part of t he comanagenent
agr eement . It's very sinple, there is no reason why
t he ophthal nol ogists in Anchorage can't be part of
this ... after 48 hours the optonetrists are back in
the system under this bill, so they're not taking

optonetrists out of the whole picture, they are part
of the picture but those first 48 hours are critica
in eye care and that's why the Anerican Acadeny of
Opht hal nol ogy endorses this bill with that change.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 32- March 17, 2005



CHAIR WLSON inquired as to the insurance paying all involved
if in fact there were situations where two ophthal nol ogi sts and
an optonetrist treated one patient.

CARL ROSEN replied yes, and that there is a fee split that
Medicare and the "O G (Ofice of the Inspector General) has
deened appropriate for appropriate comanagenent that is in place
and it is usually "80/20" for the typical relationship.

5:27:48 PM

CHAIR WLSON said that what she is hearing over and over is the
fact that the patient is going to feel confortable nost with the
person the patient knows the best. She questioned whether it
really makes a difference in ternms of who does the followup
care after eye surgery.

DR. ROSEN argued that the patient usually does not understand
what the comanagenent relationship is and that's what the "O G
and Medi care expect. He said:

| would just say the litnus test for you people who
are making these decisions ... would you prefer to
have your physician take care of you, and to nake
decisions or would you prefer to have soneone who does
not do the cutting, someone who does not do the
sewi ng, who does not nmake the difference in your
visual systemin the operating room... | amnot anti-
optonetrists. | think that we're going to inprove eye
care, we're going to set a precedent, we're going to
say | ook, you operate, you need to take care of that
patient, and after that , we can go about our business

as usual .
REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON added, "isn't it true that a patient
after back surgery mght feel nore confortable ... with their

massage therapist, that doesn't nean that they're healthier with
a massage therapist.”

DR. ROSEN reiterated that the average person is unaware of the
di fference between optonetrists and ophthal nol ogi sts. He opined
that it is the job of the pathologists to neke the best
deci si ons because ophthal nol ogi sts know nore [about eye care]
than constituents and patients.

5:31:58 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 33- March 17, 2005



DR. M CHAEL BENNETT, stated that throughout the course of the
comittee nmeet i ng, optonetrists have been conpar ed to
paral egal s, massage therapists, and other ancillary nedical
per sonnel . He enphasized that optonetrists are not ancillary
medi cal personnel. He explained that optonetrists are doctorate
| evel physicians and are trained in optonetry school to do post-
operative care. He said, "the whole gist seens to be ... are we
willing to settle for this ... second standard of care in post-
surgical care, as opposed to having the "real" doctor |ook at
the patient, and ... | don't know that it's gotten across very
well, it's the whole notion of that, that is offensive. | have
spent a long time doing post-operative care; | feel equally
gqualified to recognize the problens that are being tal ked about
here, through the general ophthal nol ogi sts. And, obviously the
surgeons that | have referred patients to ... feel |ikew se, or
t hey woul d not be sending the patients back to ne."

REPRESENTATI VE MCGQUIRE said that a nedical degree, which takes
about eight years to conplete, is different than a degree in
optonetry.

DR. BENNETT clarified that an optonetry degree takes eight years
before it is conpleted.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUIRE inquired as to the difference between
optonetrists and ophthal nol ogi sts. She said, "Wy not just
becone a nedi cal doctor?"

DR. BENNETT replied that he didn't want to becone a nedical
doct or.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE opi ned that people nake a choice about a
degree they want, and then they conme [to the legislature] and
demand additi onal powers to be granted in their profession.

5:36:19 PM

DR. BENNETT informed that optonetry has grown and changed
considerably in the past few decades. He said that
practitioners are continually expanding their capabilities and
their level of know edge. He explained that nedical doctors can
obtain training and determne their conpetency to utilize new
techniques with patients, while optonetrists cannot.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE said that people nmake a choice about a

profession and that the |legislature cannot grant additional
"powers" to suit changi ng needs.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 34- March 17, 2005



DR. BENNETT said that conanagenment with optonmetry has been
regul ated by the federal governnment since 1980 and optonetrists
made the choice to have the capability to comanage [and have
been comanaging] for 25 years. He clarified that [optonetrists]
are not asking for an expansion of authority in comnagenent
but that [the legislature] does not rescind [optometrist's]
authority in comanagenent. He conti nued:

to becone the only state in the country, where

optonetri sts, after 25 years of successf ul
comanagenent, are now prohibited from doing so, for
what ever tinme period. This is not sonething new,
you're actually trying to turn the tables back 25
years ... |I'mnot here asking you to give nme sonething
| don't already have, |1'm asking you not to take

sonet hing away |'ve been doing successfully for a |ong
time. There have been a nunber of studies, two of the
maj or ones, authored by ophthal nol ogists, |ooking at
comanagenent, |ooking at thousands and thousands of
retrospective cases and | ooki ng for out cone
differentials between optonetry conmanaged patients and
patients who are followed by the surgeon, they can't
find the problem there's no difference in outcone.

5:40: 52 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked Dr. Rosen if there is any other state has
passed |l egislation simlar to HB 151.

DR ROSEN said that four states have |ooked at simlar
| egi sl ation. He opined that HB 151 wll benefit people and
optonetrists will get a chance to participate [in eye care].

5:42: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON noved to adopt a Conceptual Amendnent
as foll ows:

| nove anmendrment nunber 1 which would change on page
1, line 12, 120 hours to 48 hours, and then on page 2,
line 1, 120 hours to 48 hours. And have the |egal
services make it a conceptual anmendnent so it's
conformng in case |'ve mssed any applicabl e | anguage
that doesn't reference 48 hours that needs to be
changed.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 35- March 17, 2005



5:43:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ects. He stated his concern that the
48- hour anendnent is arbitrary and that the testinony has shown
that nost conplications [after eye surgery] do not occur wthin
the 48-hour timefrane. He opined that, "we are just changing to

48 hours because nmaybe we can pass the bill with 48 hours and we
can't pass it wth what the ophthal nologists thenselves
recoomend ... and so, |I'lIl withdraw nmy objection for that, but I

have a problemw th doing ..

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON said that the Anerican Acadeny of
Ophthal nology is stating that 48 hours is acceptable and the
idea of the bill is that doctors stay an extra day after
surgery.

CHAIR WLSON noted that Representative Seaton's objection was
wi t hdr awn. There being no further objection, [Conceptual]
Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

5:45: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG offered that the commttee hold this
| egislation over until the next neeting because there seens to
be real hesitation anong nenbers and concerns from the
comunity.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON opi ned that HB 151 can nove. He said:

We've waited nine days ... we've had about 5 hours of
t esti nony duplicative for t he optonetrists,
duplicative of Dr. Rosen, and have another comittee
of referral. And, we also have the ability for people

to allow it to pass, but vote do not pass or "no rec"
on the file and report if they're worried about the
record.
The conmittee took an at-ease from5:46:21 PMto 5:47:02 PM
5:47: 08 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON noved to report HB 151 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON nade an obj ection and stated:

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 36- March 17, 2005



| think that we've had a |lot of testinony here, and |
think the testinmony has come down to ... surgeons
should wuse their medi cal expertise and should
determine when, wthin their nedical expertise, a
person should be able to | eave and what we are trying
to do is insert ourselves between the nedical doctors
and their decisions and say that the nedical doctor
that says that his patient is free to go in 24 hours
is making a bad decision, an incorrect decision, and
we are going to insert the legislature into a nedica

decision and say ... that we know better ... | think

that that is a very big mstake. | also think that on

page 2, line 12 where we say "this doesn't apply to

rural Al aska", [we are saying] it doesn't matter about

the care there, it only applies to Anchorage and

Fai rbanks, basically ... 1 have a real problem wth

aspects if the bill but, especially, that we're

inserting ourselves ... in the state nedical board's

pl ace.
5:48: 49 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KOHRING said that he has concerns about the
| egislation but that he will not object to nove the bill to the
next commttee. He explained that the bill wll have nore
opportunities for those that oppose this legislation to convince
menbers of other commttees to prevent the bill from going
forth. He shared that his concerns are simlar to
Representative Seaton's and he will vote to nove the bill but

mark a "do not pass" recommendation on the "sheet."
5:50: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER she said that it is clear that this bil
addresses a problem that doesn't exist. She nentioned that she
agreed with Representative Seaton's conments.

CHAIR WLSON noted that she agreed with Representatives Seaton
and Gardner. She highlighted that this is not normal
[l egislation] for Al aska. She said, "W try to make sure that
what we do doesn't have any ram fications in other areas and |

am concerned that this is setting a precedent and the w shes
of the conmttee is that we nove this bill and so we have an
objection, so |l wll go ahead and call the role."

5: 51: 03 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 37- March 17, 2005



A roll call vote was taken. Represent ati ves Kohring, MQuire,
Anderson, and Cissna voted in favor of HB 151. Represent ati ves
Seaton, Gardner, and WIson voted against it. Therefore, CSHB
151(HES) passed and was reported out of the House Health,

Education and Social Services Standing Committee by a vote of 4-
3.

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Comm ttee neeting
was adj ourned around 5:51:42 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 38- March 17, 2005



